
 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 
 

Page | 1 

2018-07-16 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

            Select Board       
 

Date:  2022-03-22 Time:  7:00 PM      

 

Building:  Reading Town Hall      Location:  Select Board Meeting Room  

 

Address:  16 Lowell Street Agenda:  Revised 

 

Purpose:  General Business 
 

Meeting Called By: Jacquelyn LaVerde on behalf of Chair Karen Herrick 
 

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding 

Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of 

operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an 

adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be 

discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda. 

 
All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted. 

 

Topics of Discussion: 

 

 

 

This Meeting will be held in-person in the Select Board 

Meeting Room at Town Hall and remotely on Zoom. It will 

also be streamed live on RCTV as usual.  

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86837735906  

Meeting ID: 868 3773 5906  
One tap mobile  
+16465189805,,86837735906# US (New York)  
+16465588656,,86837735906# US (New York)  

Dial by your location  
        +1 646 518 9805 US (New York)  
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)  
Meeting ID: 868 3773 5906  
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbdAwc8Xsl 

 

7:00 Overview of Meeting  

7:05 Service Recognition for Anne Landry  

7:10 SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports  

7:15 Public Comment  

7:30 Public Hearing: 
Approve Transfer of Liquor License - 530 Main Street 

10 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86837735906
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbdAwc8Xsl


 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 
 

Page | 2 

7:40 Introduce Sudeshna Chatterjee, Director for Equity 
and Social Justice 

 

7:50 Update on New Town Website  

8:00 Discuss email policy for Volunteer Board/Committee 
Members 

 

8:15 Haven Street Lighting Project 123 

8:30 PARC – Presentation of Recommendations 135 

9:15 Update on MBTA Communities Guidance 168 

9:30 ReCalc - Presentation and Updates 178 

 Discuss Future Agendas  

 Approve Meeting Minutes: 
• March 1, 2022 

187 

 

*Originally posted March 15, 2022, at 1:22 pm.  Revised March 16, 2022 to add 

agenda item “Service Recognition for Anne Landry”. 



                                                                                                                                                 

Office of the Town Manager              781-942-9043 

16 Lowell Street     townmanager@ci.reading.ma.us 

Reading, MA 01867         www.readingma.gov/town-manager 

 

To: Select Board 

From: Fidel A. Maltez 
Date:  March 21, 2022 
RE: Town Manager Memo for March 22nd, 2022 meeting

 

As I enter my 6th week in the role as Town Manager, I continue to be energized by our staff and residents. 

Thank you to the YMCA, who held an awesome coffee hour on March 16 and gave me an opportunity to 

meet our wonderful residents. With the help of the Chamber of Commerce, I will be holding two coffee 

hours on March 24, one at Reading Cooperative Bank and another at the Tin Bucket, aimed at meeting 

businesses in our downtown.  

 

I deeply believe that a vibrant downtown is instrumental to the health of our community. At 

Winterfest, we saw how much value our community gets from programming that brings residents 

together. Winterfest was a huge success and I commend the Chamber of Commerce for doing most of the 

work to arrange this event. A Business Improvement District (BID) can help us with additional 

programming, beautification efforts and providing support to our downtown businesses. After reviewing 

with Town Counsel, I have signed on the Town properties to the Business Improvement District.  Municipal 

properties are exempt from property tax, the Town will not pay any fees into the BID. Instead, the Town 

will negotiate a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the BID to document the level of baseline 

services currently provided by the municipality, and to memorialize any additional services or fees the 

municipality will provide to the district. I will make sure that all of the services committed by the Town 

are in-kind only and are consistent with the services we provide today. The MOU will not include any out-

of-pocket, financial contributions from the Town to the BID. The BID committee continues to make great 

progress with signing properties on; once they reach the required 60% of property owners, the BID will 

come before the Select Board for a formal vote. 

 

Our staff continues to prepare for April Town Meeting. We are very excited that FinCom voted on our 

FY2023 budget and the Town Meeting Articles. I am meeting this week with Town Counsel to finalize the 

Town Warrant Book. I am also excited to announce that we will be hosting several Town Meeting 101 

sessions in April with our Town Moderator, Town Clerk and several long time Town Meeting members. 

We will hold in person sessions at the Reading Public Library, and will also record them, with the help of 

RCTV, so they can be available anytime for our residents. 

 

Finally, I would like to thank Select Board Member Anne Landry for all her support in my hiring and 

transition into the position of Town Manager. Ms. Landry is a kind person who has provided a wealth of 

3

mailto:townmanager@ci.reading.ma.us
http://www.readingma.gov/town-manager


advice and answered many questions. I have heard from many residents and staff that she had a large 

impact during her tenure on the Select Board and I know that she will be missed.  

 

FAM 

4



Date Received Sender Topic SB Response

Staff Response 

Required?

Response 

Date Follow up Comments Closed

2/27/2022 Mary Ellen O'Neill Sidewalks FAM 2/27/2022 DPW clearing them yes

2/27/2022 Mary Ellen O'Neill Sidewalk Follow-Up

2/28/2022 Anne Coneeney Flooding issue in yards of lower Temple and Woburn Streets

3/1/2022 Angela Binda Birch Meadow funding - CIP

3/1/2022 Joseph DiGiovanni Feedback about 34 Deborah Drive Accessory Apartment

3/2/2022 Alicia Williams Town Manager Severance

3/7/2022 Kendra Cooper Re: 34 Deborah Drive Accessory Apartment- Special Permit Hearing/Plans 5/1/22

Board update for March 22nd meeting below

5



2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022

3/17/2022

Staff 
Responsibility 

Estimated 
start time

March 22, 2022 Tuesday
Overview of Meeting Herrick 7:00
Service Recognition for Anne Landry Board 7:05
SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports Board 7:10
Public Comment Board 7:15

Public Hearing
Approve Transfer of Liquor License - 530 Main 
Street Maltez 7:30
Introduce Sudeshna Chatterjee, Director for 
Equity and Social Justice

Maltez & 
Lannon 7:40

Update on New Town Website
Kraunelis & 
Wellman 7:50

Discuss email policy for Volunteer 
Board/Committee Members Kraunelis 8:00
Haven Street Lighting Project Schaeffer 8:15

PARC – Presentation of Recommendations PARC 8:30

Update on MBTA Communities Guidance Mercier 9:15

ReCalc - Presentation and Updates ReCalc 9:30

Discuss Future Agendas Board
Approve Meeting Minutes Board

March 23, 2022 FINCOM Budget Meeting (Votes) Wednesday

April 5, 2022 Local Elections Tuesday

April 19, 2022 Tuesday

Select Board Vote to Reorganize
Maltez, then 
New Chair 7:00

Present options of Water & Sewer Rates
Discuss Process for BCCs to request funds from 

Public Hearing Discuss Removal of Trails Committee Member
Town Board & Committee visits

Town Department visits

Liaison member visits

Discuss Process, Needs, and Priorities for Land 
Use Board
Evaluate Earmarks for FY23 State Budget Board
Discuss creation of spending categories for 
ARPA

April 25, 2022 Annual Town Meeting I Monday
April 28, 2022 Annual Town Meeting II Thursday
May 2, 2022 Annual Town Meeting III Monday

May 3, 2022 Tuesday

May 5, 2022 Annual Town Meeting IV Thursday

May 17, 2022 Tuesday

6



2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022

3/17/2022

Staff 
Responsibility 

Estimated 
start time

HEARING
Discuss/Vote on FY23 Non-Union Classification 
& Compensation Schedules Maltez

HEARING

Vote to Approve Town Personnel Policy and SB 

Policies: Article 6 Personnel Related Policies (if 

ready) Donahue

Discuss/Vote on Regional Affordable Housing 
Inter Municipal Agreement Mercier
Discuss and Plan Juneteenth Holiday Board

VASC meetings TBA

May 31, 2022 Tuesday

June 14, 2021 Tuesday

June 28, 2022 Tuesday

July 19, 2022 Tuesday

August 9, 2022 Tuesday

August 30, 2022 Tuesday

September 6, 2022 State Primary Election Tuesday

September 13, 2022 Tuesday

September 20, 2022 Tuesday
Vote to Close Subsequent Town Meeting 
Warrant

October 11, 2022 Tuesday

October 25, 2022 Tuesday

HEARING Tax Classification

Santaniello & 
Board of 
Assessors

November 8, 2022 State Election Tuesday

November 14, 2022 Subsequent Town Meeting I Monday

November 15, 2022 Tuesday

November 17, 2022 Subsequent Town Meeting II Thursday
November 21, 2022 Subsequent Town Meeting III Monday

November 22, 2022 Tuesday

7



2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022

3/17/2022

Staff 
Responsibility 

Estimated 
start time

November 28, 2022 Subsequent Town Meeting IV Monday

December 6, 2022 Tuesday
Vote to Approve Licenses (delegated to Town 
Manager's Office)
Vote to Approve Liquor Licenses

December 7, 2002 Wednesday
Town Department FY24 budgets

December 13, 2022 Tuesday
Town Department FY24 budgets

December 14, 2022 Wednesday
Town Department FY24 budgets (if needed)

Future Meetings - Agenda Items
Discuss Symonds Way property Board
Discuss Early Sunday Hours at Recreational 
Fields & Parks Rec Comm
Discuss/Vote to adopt Birch Meadow Master 
Plan (discuss with Town Counsel in advance) Rec Comm

Public Safety Quarterly updates
Landry/ 
Dockser

Air BnB update CPDC
Update on 186 Summer Ave / Review of Select 
Board role (consult with Town Counsel) Town Counsel
Vote to Approve Resolution Clarifying Official 
Town Website Haley/Bacci

Public Safety Badge Pinning Ceremony
Landry/ 
Dockser

Discuss Police Department Policies with respect 
to Police Reform Legislation & Department 
Accreditation

Landry/ 
Dockser

Discuss and Approve Flag Policy Board
Discuss Tree Lawn Pesticide Policy BOH
Recurring Agenda Items
Close Warrant: Annual Town Meeting March 3/1/2022
Close Warrant: Subsequent Town Meeting September 9/27/2022
Appoint Town Accountant March Annual

HEARING Approve Classification & Compensation May Annual
Appointments of Boards & Committees May/June Annual

HEARING Approve Tax Classification October Annual
HEARING Approve Licenses December Annual

Liaison: RCTV members Report Annual
Liaison: CAB (RMLD) member Report Annual
Liaison: MAPC member Report Annual
Liaison: Reading Housing Authority Report Annual

8



2022 DRAFT - SELECT BOARD AGENDAS 2022

3/17/2022

Staff 
Responsibility 

Estimated 
start time

Liaison: Reading Ice Arena Report Annual
Town Accountant Report Qtrly
Economic Development Director Semi-ann
Parking/Traffic/Transportation Task Force 
Town Board & Committee visits
Town Department visits
Review Select Board Goals
Review Town Manager Goals

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



 
To: Fidel Maltez, Town Manager 
From: Erin Schaeffer, Economic Development Director  
CC: Jean Delios, Assistant Town Manager 
Date:  March 17, 2022 
Re: Downtown Bistro Lighting Project Updates- Economic Development   
 
Economic Development Division 
The Economic Development Division provides professional, technical work advancing the Town’s 
economic development activities and goals to generate revenue for the Town. The Town does this 
through streamlined permitting, policy updates, business resources and incentives, and proactive 
implementation the Town’s Economic Development Action Plan. Our approach is to 1) keep downtown 
vital, 2) preserve what is important, 3) be queued up for opportunities. Reading’s Economic 
Development Action Plan is available online here Economic Development Action Plan (hyperlinked). 
 
Downtown Public Art Lighting Installation  
The goals of this project are to provide create a destination for people to enjoy this plaza, increase foot 
traffic and customers to downtown businesses, and provide ambient lighting to further enhance this 
plaza space. 

• A temporary bistro lighting public art display at 52 Haven Street that is professionally designed 
and engineered 

• Positive public feedback – Door-to-door, e-mail and mailed communications 
• Lights are LED, dimmable, timed (on/off) and “smart” for programmed patterns and colors 
• Town working in partnership with Wingate Property Management and property owner 
• Installation is expected in the Spring 

 

See public outreach message on page 2 for more details. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Erin Schaeffer 
Economic Development Director 
Phone: (781) 942-6791 
Fax: (781) 942-9071 
eschaeffer@ci.reading.ma.us 
 
 
 
 

Town of Reading 
16 Lowell Street 
Reading, MA 01867-2683 

123

https://www.readingma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif1116/f/uploads/readingedactionplannarrativeappendicesmerged_2016-2022_0.pdf
https://www.readingma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif1116/f/uploads/readingedactionplannarrativeappendicesmerged_2016-2022_0.pdf


 
Dear Residents, Commercial Property Owners, and Businesses,   January 11, 2022 
 
Happy new year! This letter is to inform you of an upcoming temporary public art lighting installation at 
the plaza at 52 Haven Street (lower Haven Street). For years, customers and businesses alike have 
requested decorative lighting in this area. For years, a lack of electrical infrastructure in the sidewalk, 
small street trees, a lack of shorter decorative street lights posed challenges to providing decorative 
lighting wrapped in trees or on light poles like we do on Main Street.  
 
Despite these challenges, the Town is excited to announce that the Economic Development Division is 
working to provide a fun and creative downtown temporary public art lighting installation at 52 Haven 
Street. The programmable bistro style lighting has been professional designed by renowned lighting  
is designer Joey Nicotera of Retonica. The lighting display will be in the shape of a starburst to follow 
the arc of the plaza. Lights will be installed on an engineered temporary structure that includes steel 
poles, guy-wires, concrete ballasts and decorative planters.  
 
The LED lights have a low electrical draw and are “smart”. Each light bulb can be individually 
controlled to create a variety of light patterns and colors. The light display is dimmable and will be set to 
a timer such as to not disturb adjacent residences.  

The goal of this project is to create a destination, draw customers to downtown businesses, and provide 
ambient lighting requested by customers and businesses alike on lower Haven Street. We have been 
receiving a lot of positive feedback with the addition of the bistro tables, which the Town provided last 
season and look forward to providing this artistic addition this spring. For further questions about this 
project, please contact Erin Schaeffer, Economic Development Director at eschaeffer@ci.reading.ma.us 
or (781) 942-6791. 
 
Sincerely,  
Erin Schaeffer, Economic Development Director 
Town of Readin 

  
Erin Schaeffer 
Economic Development Director 
Phone: (781) 942-6791 
Fax: (781) 942-9071 
eschaeffer@ci.reading.ma.us 
 
 
 
 

Town of Reading 
16 Lowell Street 
Reading, MA 01867-2683 

124

mailto:eschaeffer@ci.reading.ma.us


Reading Downtown 

Lighting Installation

PROJECT UPDATE – SELECT BOARD MEETING MARCH 22, 2022

125



Project Goals

 To provide a decorative a lighting installation or 

installations in downtown Reading to activate downtown 

and attract customers to support downtown businesses

 To provide temporary decorative lighting on Haven Street

 Connect Haven Street and Main Street corridors

126



Exploration of Opportunities

127



Exploration of Designs Part 1

• RMLD Permission and Permitting

• Access to electricity

• Aluminum poles not designed to carry 

tension, load, weight (deal breaker)

• Possible in future with steel poles

128



Exploration of Designs Part 2

• Starburst concept on temporary structure

• Elevates already existing plaza with bistro 

tables, which were well received this season)

• Working with property owner, property 

management company, RMLD for power

129



Exploration of Designs Part 2

Proposed locations of poles/planters of temporary installation
130



Teams and Expertise

Design and Planning

 Structural Engineer

 Lighting Designer

 Electrician

Installation

 Structural builder/installer

 Lighting installer/rigger

131



Lighting Technology and Product Type

Electrical & Safety

• Low voltage (12V) LED Lighting

• Power: 0.336 Watts per light (100 Watts total)  

• Wire: 22 AWG, 3C, UV Protected

• Certifications: (c)UL Listed, IP65, CE

Programming

• Technology to program “shows” displays

• Many color combinations

• Set on timer to turn on/off (times TBD)

132



Public Engagement

 Mailed letter of notification to downtown businesses, property owners and 

residents (January)

 E-mailed letter of notification to downtown businesses and property owners 

(January) 

 Personalized one-on-one meetings with directly abutting property owner, 

management company and businesses

 Door to door to businesses on Haven Street with notification and updates

 Select Board update on January 18, 2022 and March 22, 2022
133



Next Steps

 Procurement of additional tradespeople – In progress

 Structural engineering and structural plan finalization – In progress

 Permitting – Building, Electrical, CPDC – In Progress

 Procurement of materials – In progress

 Installation  (Spring)

134



Parking Advisory 

Recommendations 

Committee (PARC) 

Findings
TUESDAY MARCH 22, 2022

135



PARC Members

 Bernard Horn, Jr. – Chair, Reading Resident

 Elizabeth Whitelam – Vice Chair, Downtown Business Owner

 Chris Haley – Select Board, Downtown Business Owner

 John Weston – CPDC, Reading Resident

 Karen Rose-Gillis – Downtown Resident

 Thomas O’Connor – Downtown Business Owner

 Sarah Brukilacchio – Downtown Property Owner

 Jay Jackson – Downtown Resident

 Daniel Dewar – Downtown Business Owner

136



Downtown Parking: Existing 

Deficiencies

 24+ regulations in area = confusion and frustration for all users and 

enforcement officers

 Not enough spaces available for specific users or permit types

 Not enough permits available (specifically employee)

 Time limitations result in constant moving of vehicles

 Long-term parking occurring where turnover is needed

137



PARC Charge

 To review Reading’s downtown parking system and regulations;

 To guide the preparation of comprehensive system modifications;

 To clarify and simplify Reading’s downtown parking system from a user 
perspective and enforcement standpoint;

 Maximize efficiency and access

 Increase public education of parking areas

 PARC has also discussed the following topics at times but understands they fall 
under the jurisdiction of other departments and/or boards:

 Overnight Parking (PTTTF/Select Board)

 Parking Requirements within Zoning Bylaw (CPDC)

 Privately owned parking areas/shared parking opportunities

 Walkability and Traffic Calming Measures

 ADA Space Count (PTTTF) 
138



Downtown Parking and PARC
 Prior to PARC:

 10+ Zoom sessions scheduled and conducted

 Multiple Downtown Business Walks and Group Meetings

 5 Select Board meetings

 Water bill notification to residents

 CodeRed Alert to over 3,400ppl

 2020 Survey

 PARC:

 Review of initial findings/proposals from 2019-2020 initiative 

 Distribution of new parking survey

 Town-wide mailing to all households, including renters

 700+ Respondents

 10+ Open Public Meetings

 Email blasts to Downtown Businesses/Property Owners/Landlords and Property Managers/Residents, Town 
Meeting Members, Boards and Commissions, Survey Respondents

 Update to Select Board 12/7/21

 Public Forum held February 2, 2022
139



Survey Findings: Mode of Transportation

Key Takeaways: 

• Ensure availability

• Walkability of the 

downtown is important

140



Survey Findings: Experience Impact

Key 

Takeaway: 

Improve User 

Experience

141



Survey Findings: Needed Time Frames

Key Takeaways:

• 2-Hour and 

under is currently

a need.

• When more time 

is needed 

provide areas for 

such.

• Find specific 

areas for short-

term parking. 

142



Survey Findings: Number of Stops

Answers: “Depends on: location, distance between, weather, accessibility” 

143



Survey Findings: How Long are you 

Willing to Walk? 

Example of a 5min walk in 

Downtown Reading:

144



General/Survey Q&A

145



On-Street Regulation Proposals –

Employee Parking

 Increase number of dedicated employee parking spaces → 

increase number of employee parking permits available

 PARC proposals could allow an increase of ~113 formal employee 

parking spaces, not including unregulated areas

 Where? 

 Lowell St, Woburn St, High St, Chute St, Haven St, Chapin Ave, Harnden St

 All areas would still allow public 2-Hour parking

 Modify pricing of employee permit to incentivize the permit and 
parking within ‘Outer Core’ 

 Improve safety, lighting and walkability from Outer Core areas

146



Street Name/Location Existing Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Approx. Space Count Notes

Lowell St - in front of 

Church 2-Hour 2-Hour OR All Day w/ EP 9

Align with adjacent Lowell Street 

regulations.

Lowell St - in front of 

cemetery 2-Hour 2-Hour OR All Day w/ EP 10

Woburn St - between 

Lowell St and High St

Mix of 2-Hour only and 2-Hour/All Day 

w/ EP

Entire Street to be 2-Hour OR All Day 

w/ EP 52

Consistent regulation is beneficial to 

enforcement and public 

understanding.

Vine St - at High Street

Resident Only 6:00-10:30AM, 

Unregulated after Convert to 2-Hour OR All-Day w/EP 55

Adds employee parking supply and 

aligns with adjacent parking 

regulations.

Chute St - between 

Mount Vernon St and 

Woburn St

Southern portions is 2-Hour only; 

northern portion is Resident Only 6:00-

10:30am, Unregulated after

Convert southern portion to 2-Hour 

OR All Day w/ EP. No change to 

Resident Only portion 13

Adds employee parking supply to 

area.

Haven St - east of 

Main St to Village St

Mix of 2-Hour only and 2-Hour/All Day 

w/ EP

Entire portion to be 2-Hour OR All 

Day w/ EP 13

Align with adjacent Haven Street 

regulations.

Chapin Ave

Mix of Unregulated and 2-Hour/All 

Day w/ EP

Entire Street to be 2-Hour OR All Day 

w/ EP 14

Align with adjacent Chapin Ave 

regulations.

Harnden Street 2-hour

Convert west side to 2-hour OR All 

day w/EP 9

East side remain, convert 5 spaces on 

west to 2-Hour/EP. 

On-Street Employee Parking - PARC Proposed Recommendations

Est. # of Change to Employee Spaces Street Portion Estimated Count Notes 

Existing Employee Parking Areas PARKING LOTS NOT INCLUDED

Woburn St 25

Lowell St 17

Pleasant St 9

Haven St 8

Gould St 15

Chapin Ave 8

High St 41

Existing Total 123

Proposed Employee Parking Changes

Lowell Street 19

Chute Street 8

Haven Street 5

Chapin Ave 6

Harnden Street 5

Woburn Street 30

Vine/High Street 55

Gould Street -15

Proposed Total 113

Total 236 91.87% increase

147



On-Street Regulation Proposals –

Customer/Public Parking

 Increase number of public 2-hour only parking spaces in the ‘Inner 
Core’

 Allow for more parking turnover and availability to customers/users of 
Downtown

 PARC proposals could allow an increase of ~57 spaces with 2-hour 
designations 

 Where?

 Ash Street, Gould Street

 2-Hour Only

 Vine/High Street and Chapin Avenue

 HOWEVER: These areas would also allow all day parking with Employee Permit

 Unregulated after 5:00PM

148



Street Name/Location Existing Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Approx. Space Count Notes

Gould St

Mix of 2-Hour, 2-Hour OR All Day 

w/EP, and Resident Reserved

Remove EP reulgations/ Convert 

to 2-Hour only. No Changes to 

Resident Only. 20

5 spaces Resident Reserved at 

east end MUST remain

Ash St - between 

Haven St and 

Washington St Mix of 2-Hour and Unregulated

Convert Unregulated areas to 2-

Hour only 29

Align with adjacent Ash St 

regulations

On-Street 2-Hour Public Parking - PARC Proposed Recommendations

Est. # of Change to 2-Hour Spaces Street Portion Estimated Count Notes 

Existing 2-Hour PARKING LOTS NOT INCLUDED

Woburn St 52

some of which also includes 

EP parking

Chute St 8

Sanborn St 13

Haven St 97

some of which also includes 

EP parking

High St 72

41 of which includes EP 

parking (former leased spaces)

Lowell St 36

17 of which includes EP 

parking (cobblestone area) 

Main St 44

Pleasant St 21

a majority of which also 

includes EP parking

Ash St 12

Lincoln St 3

Chapin Ave 8

a majority of which also 

includes EP parking

Gould St 15 Includes EP parking

Existing Total 381

Proposed 2-Hour Parking Changes

Ash Street 12

Chapin Avenue 6

Would also allow all day 

parking w/ EP

Vine/High Street 55

Would also allow all day 

parking w/ EP

High Street -16

Proposed Total 57

Total 438 14.97% increase

149



On-Street Regulation Proposals –

Resident Parking

 Maintain existing Resident Only Parking north of tracks

 Green St, Gould St, Linden St, Bancroft Ave, Chute St

 Add ~9 spaces on lower Sanborn Street for residents with no off-

street dedicated parking 

 Reallocate ~16 spaces directly abutting commuter rail station

 What will future commuter needs look like? 

 Change regulation hours to 6:00-9:30AM

 Currently 6:00-10:30AM 

 Unregulated after 9:30AM and are thus open to any user (employee, 

customer, commuter, resident, etc.)

150



Street Name/Location Existing Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Approx. Space Count Notes

High St SOUTH 

SIDE/Depot Parking - 

between Woburn St 

and Washington St

Resident Only 6:00-10:30AM, Unregulated 

after; 16 spaces designated as 2-Hour. 

Change 16 spaces to 

Resident 6:00-9:30, 

Unregulated after 16

This area needs to be watched carefully for 

evolving needs. 

Sanborn St - between 

Woburn St and Haven 

St 2-Hour

Resident Only from 6-

9:30AM for north half of 

street (up to Postmark 

where commercial 

business is in 

operation), Unregulated 

after 13

On-Street Resident Permit Parking - PARC Proposed Recommendations

Est. # of Change to Resident Spaces Street Portion Estimated Count Notes 

Existing Resident Only

Green St 21

Gould St 5 Required to maintain

Linden St 20

Bancroft Ave 6

Chute St 6

High St 141 42 licensed MBTA spots (recommended change)

Lincoln St 180

Prescott St 36

Washington St 40

Wenda St 12

Woburn St 27

Fulton St 4

Crosby Rd 15 Cant manage two-sided parking 

Existing Total 513

Proposed Resident Only Parking Changes

Vine/High Street -55 Proposed as EP/2-Hour Parking

High Street 16

Sanborn Street 9

To help with multi-family units that have no 

dedicated parking

Proposed Total -30

Total 483 5.85% loss 151



152



On-Street Parking Regulations Q&A

153



Public Parking Lot Proposals

 Install two kiosks each at both the Upper Haven (CVS) Lot and Brande Court Lot

 Goals: 

 To increase turnover and keep parking available

 To empower the users to stay as long as desired/needed

 Potential Pricing Scheme:

 Free for stay of 1 hour or less; $1 per hour for 1-4 hours; $5 per hour after 4 hours

 Mitigates impact to users who need short-term parking in these areas

 Unregulated after 5:00PM

 Allow payment by cash, card and mobile apps

 If needed, pricing can be adjusted based on utilization trends

 Pay by Plate – user friendly and works well with mobile apps

 No need to go back to car or remember space #

 PayByPhone app used by MBTA and is recommended for consistency

154



Public Parking Lot Proposals Cont.

 Voted to recommend that Select Board make request to April 2022 

Town Meeting for $110,000 to cover costs of 4 kiosks + 2 handheld 

enforcement devices

 Estimated payback within 1-3 years

 Potential to establish a ‘Parking Benefit District’ (or similar fund)

 Allows revenue generated to be reinvested back into the district for a 

wide range of public realm improvements 

 Build/expand LPR Policy to ensure privacy to users

 Utilization data can help determine trends and pricing adjustments

 Considerations: Maintenance, Collection, Customer Service, etc.

155



Public Parking Lot Q&A

156



Structured Parking 

Findings/Recommendations

 Hire consultant to conduct a feasibility study to determine 
opportunities across the Downtown area

 Study potential locations, safety/access, demand, cost and funding 
opportunities, etc.

 Why:

 Parking garage is a frequent question/suggestion

 If management is not enough to mitigate parking deficiencies 

 However:

 Recent and past studies (2007, 2009, 2019) have indicated parking 
management issues over inventory

 PARC Public Forum: public comments indicated it is a lesser priority than 
other on-going initiatives

157



Overnight Parking

 Lincoln Street Pilot Program initiated by Select Board in February 

2022

 Future updates expected from RPD

 PTTTF/Select Board to continue to look for permanent opportunities

158



What’s Next? 

 Schedule Public Hearing with Select Board

 Upcoming Meeting Dates: 4/19, 5/3, 5/17

 Public Outreach for Hearing

 If needed, extend PARC beyond 4/30

159



160



Street Name/Location Existing Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Approx. Space Count Notes

Lowell St - in front of 

Church 2-Hour 2-Hour OR All Day w/ EP 9

Align with adjacent Lowell Street 

regulations.

Lowell St - in front of 

cemetery 2-Hour 2-Hour OR All Day w/ EP 10

Woburn St - between 

Lowell St and High St

Mix of 2-Hour only and 2-Hour/All Day w/ 

EP

Entire Street to be 2-Hour OR All Day w/ 

EP 52

Consistent regulation is beneficial to 

enforcement and public understanding.

Vine St - at High Street

Resident Only 6:00-10:30AM, Unregulated 

after Convert to 2-Hour OR All-Day w/EP 55

Adds employee parking supply and aligns 

with adjacent parking regulations.

Chute St - between 

Mount Vernon St and 

Woburn St

Southern portions is 2-Hour only; northern 

portion is Resident Only 6:00-10:30am, 

Unregulated after

Convert southern portion to 2-Hour OR 

All Day w/ EP. No change to Resident 

Only portion 13 Adds employee parking supply to area.

Haven St - east of Main 

St to Village St

Mix of 2-Hour only and 2-Hour/All Day w/ 

EP

Entire portion to be 2-Hour OR All Day 

w/ EP 13

Align with adjacent Haven Street 

regulations.

Chapin Ave

Mix of Unregulated and 2-Hour/All Day w/ 

EP

Entire Street to be 2-Hour OR All Day w/ 

EP 14

Align with adjacent Chapin Ave 

regulations.

Harnden Street 2-hour

Convert west side to 2-hour OR All day 

w/EP 9

East side remain, convert 5 spaces on 

west to 2-Hour/EP. 

Est. # of Change to Employee Spaces Street Portion Estimated Count Notes 

Existing Employee Parking Areas PARKING LOTS NOT INCLUDED

Woburn St 25

Lowell St 17

Pleasant St 9

Haven St 8

Gould St 15

Chapin Ave 8

High St 41

Existing Total 123

Proposed Employee Parking Changes

Lowell Street 19

Chute Street 8

Haven Street 5

Chapin Ave 6

Harnden Street 5

Woburn Street 30

Vine/High Street 55

Gould Street -15

Proposed Total 113

Total 236 91.87% increase

On-Street Employee Parking - PARC Proposed Recommendations

161



Street Name/Location Existing Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Approx. Space Count Notes

Gould St

Mix of 2-Hour, 2-Hour OR All Day 

w/EP, and Resident Reserved

Remove EP reulgations/ Convert to 2-

Hour only. No Changes to Resident 

Only. 20

5 spaces Resident Reserved at 

east end MUST remain

Ash St - between Haven 

St and Washington St Mix of 2-Hour and Unregulated

Convert Unregulated areas to 2-Hour 

only 29

Align with adjacent Ash St 

regulations

Est. # of Change to 2-Hour Spaces Street Portion Estimated Count Notes 

Existing 2-Hour PARKING LOTS NOT INCLUDED

Woburn St 52

some of which also includes EP 

parking

Chute St 8

Sanborn St 13

Haven St 97

some of which also includes EP 

parking

High St 72

41 of which includes EP parking 

(former leased spaces)

Lowell St 36

17 of which includes EP parking 

(cobblestone area) 

Main St 44

Pleasant St 21

a majority of which also includes 

EP parking

Ash St 12

Lincoln St 3

Chapin Ave 8

a majority of which also includes 

EP parking

Gould St 15 Includes EP parking

Existing Total 381

Proposed 2-Hour Parking Changes

Ash Street 12

Chapin Avenue 6

Would also allow all day parking 

w/ EP

Vine/High Street 55

Would also allow all day parking 

w/ EP

High Street -16

Proposed Total 57

Total 438 14.97% increase

On-Street 2-Hour Public Parking - PARC Proposed Recommendations

162



Street Name/Location Existing Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Approx. Space Count Notes
High St SOUTH 
SIDE/Depot Parking - 
between Woburn St and 
Washington St

Resident Only 6:00-10:30AM, Unregulated 
after; 16 spaces designated as 2-Hour. 

Change 16 spaces to 
Resident 6:00-9:30, 
Unregulated after 16

This area needs to be watched carefully for evolving 
needs. 

Sanborn St - between 
Woburn St and Haven St 2-Hour

Resident Only from 6-
9:30AM for north half of 
street (up to Postmark 

where commercial 
business is in operation), 

Unregulated after 13

Est. # of Change to Resident Spaces Street Portion Estimated Count Notes 
Existing Resident Only

Green St 21
Gould St 5 Required to maintain
Linden St 20

Bancroft Ave 6
Chute St 6
High St 141 42 licensed MBTA spots (recommended change)

Lincoln St 180
Prescott St 36

Washington St 40
Wenda St 12

Woburn St 27
Fulton St 4

Crosby Rd 15 Cant manage two-sided parking 
Existing Total 513

Proposed Resident Only Parking Changes
Vine/High Street -55 Proposed as EP/2-Hour Parking

High Street 16

Sanborn Street 9
To help with multi-family units that have no dedicated 

parking
Proposed Total -30

Total 483 5.85% loss

On-Street Resident Permit Parking - PARC Proposed Recommendations

163



Parking Lot Existing Regulations Proposed Regulations Approx. Space Count Notes/To Be Discussed

Brande Court

Mix of 4-Hour and All 

Day w/ EP. NO 

overnight. 85

CVS Rear 4-Hour. NO overnight. 61

CVS Front 2-Hour/30min No Changes 25

Pleasant/Union 

St Lot

Mix of 2-Hour and 2-

Hour Or All Day w/ EP. 

Police Dpt. Parking No Changes 30

Pleasant St 

Center Lot

Senior Center Business 

Mon-Fri. NO 

overnight. No Changes 30

Town Hall

Town Hall business 

Mon-Thr. Unregulated 

after 5:30pm 

Allow Employee Parking 

Fri-Sun if possible. 

Overnight to be re-

evaluated (see 

regulations section) 56

Could do so through 

education and awareness.

Ash Street Lot 2 Hour No Changes 6

Pricing scheme to 

mitigate impact to short-

term users while also 

disincentivizing very long-

term parking. Expand LPR 

policy to ensure user 

privacy. Establish Parking 

Benefit District (or 

similar) to reinvest 

revenue into area.

Public Parking Lots - PARC Proposed Recommendations

Two kiosks at each lot. 

One Hour and below 

free (once per day); $1 

per hour for 1-4hrs; $5 

per hour for hours over 

4hrs. Unregulated after 

5:00PM. 

164



Regulation/Permit Current Regulation(s) Proposed Regulation(s) Notes/To Be Discussed

Resident Only Permit (aka 

Reading Community Access)

Enforced 6:00-10:30am. 

$150 for permit, 

annually. Free for those 

fronting street with 

such regulation. 

Change hours to 6:00-

9:30am

Allow commuter parking to 

remain in early hours while 

opening spaces up slightly earlier 

for 

businesses/employees/customer

s.

Employee Parking Permit

Enforced 8:30am-

5:00pm Mon-Fri. $260 

for permit, annually. 

Free to those fronting 

street with such 

regulation.

Allow for $150 to 

incentive parking in outer 

areas. 

Price effectively for businesses 

and employees to encourage 

parking in dedicated areas.

Overnight Parking 
No parking on-street or 

municipal lots between 

1:00am-6:00am TBD SB/PTTTF

Permit/Parking Regulations - PARC Proposed Recommendations

165



A. Kiosks & Handhelds (PARC Recommendation for Funding: $110k) 

 

1. Why Solar? 
• Installation and operation costs are lower 
• Can be moved if needed 
• CVS Lot does not have electrical conduit/hookup 
• Solar not as reliable as hard-wired in winter, but newer models are better 
• Costs less (only slightly) than hard-wired kiosks 

 
2. How quickly will kiosks pay for themselves? 

While the primary goal of implementing paid parking is to influence user behavior and generate 
a healthy balance between use and availability of spaces, the potential revenue stream is not 
insignificant. Based on initial revenue projections prepared by Nelson Nygaard, a conservative 
calculation reveals that the CVS Lot (58 spaces) and the Brande Court Lot (86 spaces) could 
generate enough revenue within 1-3 years to pay back the total cost of 4 VenTek kiosks, as 
priced above.  

 
B. Mobile App Package ($ Included Above) 

Parking Apps in this area include: PayByPhone (MBTA, Arlington, Waltham); ParkMobile 
(Somerville); PassportLabs (Boston, Cambridge, Salem), etc. Given that we are an MBTA community, 
I would recommend we go with PayByPhone, but I’m open to suggestions/feedback. 
 
Contracts may include a small start-up fee (~$300) paid for by the Town and then a nominal per-
transaction fee, which is often passed through to the end user. 
 

C. 3rd Party Vendor to Interface between Kiosk & Mobile App ($ Included Above) 
A 3rd party vendor is typically required to enable the Mobile App and Kiosk to speak to one another. 
Contracts may include a small start-up fee (~$300) paid for by the Town and then a nominal per-
transaction fee, which is often passed through to the end user. 

Kiosk** Add-Ons*** Shipping Installation^ O&M^^ Fees^^^ Training Total for 4 HandHeld (2) Kiosk + HH 30% Cont. TOTAL
IPS Group $6,600 $1,650 $500 $300 $1,100 $0 $950 $44,400 $44,400 $13,320 $57,720

ITS - MacKay $6,045 $500 $125 $300 $1,315 $0 $0 $33,140 $33,140 $9,942 $43,082

ITS - T2 $10,946 $4,000 $450 $300 $2,775 $0 $0 $73,884 $73,884 $22,165 $96,049

Parkeon $9,200 $2,400 $0 $300 $750 $0 $0 $50,600 $50,600 $15,180 $65,780

VenTek $14,570 $2,200 $0 $300 $2,470 $0 $0 $78,160 $4,000 $82,160 $24,648 $106,808

Parking Kiosks & Handheld Enforcement Devices - Pricing by Vendor*

***Add-Ons vary by vendor, but generally are hardware features that do not come with basic model, such as contactless antenna, higher watt solar panel, bill acceptance, key pad, EMV (chip) 
card reader, etc. TBD if needed.

^^O&M calculated for 1st year. Varies by vendor, but may include software license, data collection/download options, wireless fee, additional warranty, optional maintenance, customized 
marketing, software add-ons such as validation codes, etc. 

^^^Mobile App Fees and Transaction Fees for credit card processing vary by vendor but are nominal ($0.05 to $0.50) and are often passed on to end-user. TBD as part of contract.

**Assumptions: Kiosks will be Multi-Space, Pay-By-Plate, Solar-Powered w/Wireless Communication, and will accept App/Bills/Coins/Cards

*Vendors vetted and selected by MAPC as part of their Collective Procurement Contract

^Installation by Town staff, will include pouring of concrete pad and some assembly

166



 
D. Enforcement Technology (~$ Included Above) 

Vehicle-Mounted Devices 
The Police Department currently has 1 License Plate Recognition (LPR) device that is programmed 
for vehicle registration enforcement, not parking enforcement. The PD was recently quoted $50,000 
by PassportLabs to get an LPR device for parking enforcement (details to follow). Presumably, this 
device would need wireless communication capability, and need to be programmed to speak with 
the App and Kiosk, which would be a separate contract(s).  

Handheld Enforcement Devices 
A less expensive, and more flexible, enforcement option is the handheld device. Of the kiosk 
vendors pre-selected by MAPC, only VenTek offers a handheld device as part of their price sheet, for 
$1,995 per unit. Staff are working to get pricing from other vendors. 

167



 

DRAFT Compliance Guidelines for Multi-family Districts 
Under Section 3A of the Zoning Act 

 

A. Overview of Section 3A of the Zoning Act (MGL Ch. 40A) 
In January 2021, the State legislature passed an economic development bill that added Section 3A to the 
Zoning Act, which includes the following requirements that all “MBTA Communities” shall adopt a 
zoning district as follows: 

• The district must be of “reasonable size;” 
• Multi-family housing must be allowed at a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre; 
• This multi-family housing must be allowed “as-of-right;” 
• The zone must be no more than ½ mile from a commuter rail station, subway station, ferry 

terminal or bus station; 
• Allowable housing must be suitable for families with children and have no age restrictions. 

 

B. Overview of the DRAFT Compliance Guidelines promulgated by DHCD 
The Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD), in coordination with MBTA and 
MassDOT, was tasked with promulgating guidelines to determine if MBTA communities comply with 
Section 3A. The latest version of this guidance came out on December 15, 2021 and includes the 
following [selectively excerpted to highlight issues specific to Reading]: 

1. Overview of Section 3A of the Zoning Act – see above 

2. Definitions – including “Bus service community,” “Commuter rail community,” “Developable 
land,” “Gross density,” “MBTA community,” “Multi-family housing,” “Reasonable size”  

3. General Principles of Compliance – the what, where, how and why 

4. Allowing Multi-Family Housing “As of Right” – Site plan approval is considered an “as-of-right” 
approval process, but special permits and variances are not. 

 During Q&A in a webinar on February 1st, DHCD clarified that the 40R plan approval process 
is considered “as-of-right.” 
 

5. Determining “Reasonable Size” – the multi-family district must have:  

(a) a minimum land area of ~50 acres; if an Overlay, at least 25 acres must be contiguous, and 
(b) a minimum multi-family unit capacity based on a percentage of total 2020 housing stock; the 
percentage depends on the type of transit service a community has.  

 Reading’s 2020 census housing count was 9,952 total units. 

 Transit service categories and percentages are: rapid transit community (25%), bus service 
community (20%), commuter rail community (15%), adjacent community (10%). 

 Reading has been classified as a “bus service community,” which we believe to be erroneous 
– see C2 for details.  

168



 However, as a “bus service community,” Reading will need to zone for 9,952 x 20% = 1,990 
by-right units within a compliant multi-family housing district.  

 If correctly classified as a “commuter rail community,” Reading would need to zone for 9,952 
x 15% = 1,493 by-right units. 

6. Minimum Gross Density – the district must have a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre; 
“gross density” is defined as “a units-per-acre density measurement that includes land occupied 
by public rights-of-way and any recreational, civic, commercial and other nonresidential uses.” 

 Based on this, the minimum gross density of 15 units per acre can be spread across the 
entirety of the DSGD 40R Overlay. We believe Reading can achieve this, since the minimum 
density for new projects in the DSGD is 20 units per acre, and most of the approved 40R 
projects have been between 50-80 units per acre.  

7. Determining Suitability for Families with Children – the district cannot have age restrictions or 
restrictions on unit size, number of bedrooms, bedroom size, or number of occupants. 

 There are no such restrictions within our zoning.  

8. Location of Districts – at least half of the district must be within ½ mile of the transit station; the 
½ mile radius is measured from the boundary of the parcel containing the transit station. 

 The entirety of the DSGD, as well as almost all of the A-40 district north of downtown and a 
large portion of the Business A district along south Main Street, are located within ½ mile of 
the train station. 

9. Determinations of Compliance – DHCD determines compliance when a community submits a 
request for compliance that includes the requisite information. 

10. Renewals and Rescission of a Determination of Compliance – determinations of compliance are 
good for 10 years, and shall be renewed 6 months before expiration. Determinations of 
compliance can be rescinded if inaccurate information was submitted or if the zoning is 
amended such that it negatively alters the unit capacity of the multi-family district. 

11. Effect of Noncompliance – non-compliant communities will not be eligible for the following 
grant programs:  

i. Housing Choice Initiative as described by the governor in a message to the general court 
dated December 11, 2017;  

ii. Local Capital Projects Fund established in section 2EEEE of chapter 29; 
iii. MassWorks infrastructure program established in section 63 of chapter 23A; or 
iv. Other grants at DHCD’s discretion. 

 
 In the past decade, Reading can confirm we have received $50,000 in funds from the grant 

programs listed in i. through iii. The grants and extent of DHCD’s discretion in iv. are unclear. 
In the next year, Reading anticipates applying for MassWorks grant funds. 

 Reading can achieve interim compliance, and thus remain eligible for grants under these 
programs, through the end of 2022 (See E below). If we submit an Action Plan for MBTA 
Communities compliance by December 31, 2022, our interim compliance and grant eligibility 
may be extended through the end of 2023. 

 

169



C. Reading’s Questions, Concerns & Feedback for DHCD 
(1) Definition of Multi-Family: (NB: this issue has been addressed). It is our interpretation that 

Reading’s ~48-acre Downtown Smart Growth District (DSGD 40R Overlay), which was adopted at 
the local level in an effort to incentivize smart growth and the production of housing near 
transit, and is entirely within ½ mile of the Reading Depot, cannot count toward compliance 
with this program because of a disparity between MGL Ch. 40A Section 3A and MGL Ch. 40R in 
how “multi-family” is defined.  

Specifically: 

MGL Ch. 40A Section 3A: “Multi-family housing” means a building with 3 or more residential 
dwelling units or 2 or more buildings on the same lot with more than 1 residential dwelling unit in 
each building. 

MGL Ch. 40R (760 CMR 59.02 Definitions): Multi-family Residential Use. Apartment or 
condominium units in individual buildings each of which contains or will contain more than three 
such units, provided that the 40R Zoning may treat attached dwelling units on separate lots as 
single-family residential use. 

In Reading Zoning Bylaw Section 10.5, the Ch. 40R definition is modified as such: Multi-Family 
Residential: A building containing four or more residential dwelling units designed for occupancy 
by the same number of families as the number of dwelling units. 

In sum, under 40A multi-family is 3 or more units, while under 40R multi-family is 4 or more 
units. Because the DSGD 40R Overlay complies with 40R, the District does not allow multi-family 
housing at 3 or more units as-of-right and thus technically cannot count toward compliance with 
the MBTA Communities Guidelines.1  

 In a call on 2/24/22 with Bill Reyelt and Elaine Wijnja of the 40R Program at DHCD, they 
stated that they will allow Reading to modify our definition of Multi-Family within 
Reading ZBL Section 10.5, so that it allows “three or more units.” This change will be 
proposed at April 2022 Town Meeting as part of the holistic amendments to the 40R 
Bylaw. If this change passes, this gating item will be addressed and our Downtown 
Smart Growth 40R District will be able to qualify towards compliance with the MBTA 
Communities Guidelines. 

 
(2) Transit Service: Despite very low ridership, limited and ineffective routing through Reading, 

sparse service, and the recent loss of one of our two bus routes (Route 136),2 Reading has been 
classified as a “bus service community” under the MBTA Communities Guidance.3  
 
We believe this is erroneous for the following reasons: 

a. Reading has a commuter rail station within its borders. Moreover, pre-pandemic, 
Reading Depot was the busiest station on the Haverhill Commuter Rail line, nearly 

1 During Q&A in a webinar on February 1st, DHCD clarified that the MBTA Communities Guidelines definition of Multi-Family 
aligns with MGL Ch. 40A Section 3A, and thus will not change under MBTA Communities.  
2 In March 2021, the 136 bus route, one of two bus routes serving Reading and nearby towns, was taken offline, and the 137 
bus route was modified to try and accommodate the loss. 
3 Reading is not the only community in this position. Woburn, Winchester, Wilmington and Beverly are also classified as “bus 
service communities” though they have active commuter rail stations within their borders.  

170



doubling the ridership of the two other busiest stations, as shown in this chart from 
“Modernizing the Haverhill Line,” TransitMatters, Fall 2021.4  Reading’s population is 
demonstrably more reliant on the commuter rail than on the bus.  

 
b. Again, Reading has a commuter rail station within its borders. Therefore, based on the 

definitions of “bus service community” and “commuter rail community” provided in the 
Guidance, Reading should be a “commuter rail community”: 

“Bus service community” means an MBTA community with a bus station within 
its borders or within 0.5 miles of its border, or an MBTA bus stop within its 
borders, and no subway station or commuter rail station within its border, or 
within 0.5 mile of its border. 

“Commuter rail community” means an MBTA community with a commuter rail 
station within its borders, or within 0.5 mile of its border, and no subway station 
within its borders, or within 0.5 mile of its border. 

 
However, we do note that the FAQ5 on the www.mass.gov/mbtacommunities webpage 
implies that the classification was not solely based on the definitions in the Guidance:  

A2.      Can you clarify how DHCD determined if a particular MBTA 
community is a rapid transit community, a bus service community, a 
commuter rail community, or an adjacent community? 

MBTA communities were categorized based on whether they have transit service 
located within the municipality or within 0.5 miles of the municipal boundary, and 
if so what type of transit service.  A community with access to more than one 
transit type is classified in the category with the higher unit capacity 
requirement.  More specifically: 

• A bus service community has no subway station within its border or within 
0.5 miles of its border, but does have an MBTA bus route with one or more 
bus stops located within the community.  Note, a bus community that 

4 “Modernizing the Haverhill Line,” TransitMatters, Fall 2021. 
5 https://www.mass.gov/info-details/mbta-communities-frequently-asked-questions 

171

http://www.mass.gov/mbtacommunities
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/533b9a24e4b01d79d0ae4376/t/6194348d8cd6ab1f9aaef11b/1637102735250/Haverhill+Final.pdf


happens also to have a commuter rail station within its borders is placed 
within the bus community category due to the presence of the bus route. 

 Understanding as soon as possible whether Reading will remain classified as a “bus 
service community” or be more appropriately classified as a “commuter rail community” 
is important for the following reasons: 
(1) It determines how many units we need to zone for: 

 Bus Service Community: 9,952 x 20% = 1,990 units 
 Commuter Rail Community: 9,952 x 15% = 1,493 units 

(2) It determines when we need to comply with the statute: 
 Bus Service Community: March 31, 2023 Action Plan / Dec 31, 2023 ZBL Amend. 
 Commuter Rail Community: July 1, 2023 Action Plan / Dec 31, 2024 ZBL Amend. 

 
(3) Build-Out Analysis: More detailed written guidance is needed to assist communities in 

determining build-out capacity. Specifically, the Guidance should address the following:  
a. Whether existing multi-family units can be counted or not. 
b. Whether using existing projects as guidance for determining build-out on similarly sized 

lots is an acceptable methodology.  
c. How to handle existing single or two-family housing units on small lots with densities 

greater than 15 units per acre (in Reading’s case 20 units per acre). The small size of the 
lots makes them (1) ineligible for redevelopment under 40R and/or (2) unlikely to 
generate more units. Can these units count because the minimum density is met? 

d. How to handle undersized lots. Should they be eliminated from the analysis, or can they 
be combined with other undersized lots to create conforming lots that can then be 
included in the build-out calculation? 

e. How to handle split-zoned lots both in terms of existing units and future zoned units. 
Can existing units count if over half of the lot is in a different zone? Should the lot be 
excluded from a build-out calculation? 

f. Can the build-out include public lands that may be part of a longer-term redevelopment 
strategy? 

 
(4) Timeframe for Compliance: The timeframe for compliance is quite tight and should be extended 

for the following reasons: 
a. An enormous amount of staff time has already been spent as follows: attendance at 

multiple webinars on the topic; preparation of a preliminary analysis to determine 
whether we might qualify currently; discovery of problems with, feedback on, and 
questions pertaining to the Guidance; preparation of presentations and updates to the 
Community Planning & Development Commission (CPDC), and as required, the Select 
Board; and preparation of an Action Plan by December 31, 2022. 

b. A site-specific build-out analysis will not be something that staff have the bandwidth or 
expertise to conduct, especially in time to meet the Action Plan deadline of December 
31, 2022. Time will be needed for the Town to apply for and acquire funds for technical 
assistance.   

c. Bringing Zoning Bylaw Amendments to Town Meeting requires a lot of outreach, CPDC 
time, and staff coordination. Given the sensitive and far-reaching nature of what may be 

172



proposed to comply with this Guidance, it is important that planners have time for 
process, education, feedback, and of course, the requisite public hearing process. In 
Reading, we typically decide in the fall what we will bring to Town Meeting the next fall, 
and then we spend the better part of a year bringing all parties to the table. If we do not 
hear from DHCD on our Action Plan until spring 2023, it will be tight getting it to 
November 2023 Town Meeting, especially given CPDC’s many competing priorities.  

 
(5) Potential Expansion of Effect of Noncompliance: Section 3A states that an MBTA community 

that fails to comply shall not be eligible for funds from the following grant programs:  
i. Housing Choice Initiative as described by the governor in a message to the 

general court dated December 11, 2017;  
ii. Local Capital Projects Fund established in section 2EEEE of chapter 29; or  

iii. MassWorks infrastructure program established in section 63 of chapter 23A. 

However, the Guidance states that “DHCD may, in its discretion, take noncompliance into 
consideration when making other discretionary grant awards.”   
 
Reading finds this potential expansion of the effect of noncompliance into other grant programs 
problematic, especially if left to the discretion of DHCD without further legislative action and 
without clarity on which grants may be included and under what circumstances. It is unclear to 
Reading that DHCD has the right to expand the effect of noncompliance in this manner.  
 

(6) Feedback from CPDC: Staff reviewed the Guidance and preliminary analysis with the CPDC on 
February 28th and March 14th.  
 
To date, CPDC members have expressed the following sentiments: 

a. Reading is routinely touted as the “poster child” 40R community. We were recently told 
by DHCD6 that we are the “most advanced in terms of implementation of a 40R District” 
and the fact that “we are a success story, means our bylaw may set a precedent as other 
communities will want to use our language.” If Reading cannot figure it out, with all the 
density we have right near the train, then something is broken. Staff should continue 
with the analysis, which if nothing else should demonstrate to DHCD just how hard this 
will be for other communities.  

b. Reading should not compromise design quality for housing quantity by reducing 
minimum dimensional requirements and lowering standards. 

c. We have yet to see a clear reason why Reading needs to qualify for the specified grant 
programs. The possibility of obtaining a few grants, perhaps nominal in size, which 
require a lot of staff time to apply for and manage, would not be worth fundamentally 
changing the character of downtown. 

d. Staff should continue with the analysis so CPDC can understand the magnitude and 
feasibility of any necessary changes before throwing in the towel. 

 

6 During a call between Reading staff and DHCD staff on February 24, 2022. 

173



D. Reading’s Preliminary High-Level Analysis 
As noted above, compliance with the Guidelines requires communities to: 
• Have a ~50-acre district that allows multi-family as-of-right at a minimum gross density of 15 

units per acre; and 
• Prove that the district can accommodate a minimum multi-family unit capacity based on 2020 

housing unit count and type of transit service. 

Assumptions 
1. We will remain a “bus service community” and we will need to zone for 1,990 units. 
2. We will not be able to include undersized parcels in our build-out calculation. 

Methodology 
This is a preliminary high-level analysis that uses gross square footage and calculates a range of units 
based solely on minimum density (20 units/acre) and maximum density (65 units/acre) in the DSGD 
40R Overlay. It does not account for site specifics and dimensional requirements. 

Purpose 
The purpose of this methodology is to understand if the densest scenario puts us within striking 
distance of compliance so we can determine if and how to proceed before we undertake a more 
detailed, time-consuming build-out analysis which will require a lot of staff work and/or technical 
assistance from a consultant.  

Thought Process & Steps to Analysis: 

(1) Get Downtown Smart Growth District (DSGD 40R Overlay) to Qualify: 
 District is ~48 acres; we have been told there is flexibility with the 50-acre requirement 
 Minimum gross density allowed exceeds 15 units per acre b/c 40R requires a minimum 

20 unit per acre density for new multi-family or mixed-use projects 
 Change the definition of Multi-Family in our 40R Bylaw at April 2022 Town Meeting 

 
(2) Calculate minimum multi-family unit capacity in DSGD: 

 Tally Existing Multi-Family units: 
 Multi-family units that were allowed as-of-right, and 
 Multi-family units that exist at densities greater than 20 units per acre 
 Preliminary tally is ~459 units 

 
 Determine Lots and Land Area remaining: 

 Remove public land, rights-of-way, undersized lots, etc. 
 Preliminary remainder is 53 lots and ~16 acres of land area 
 [Undersized lots: 52 lots and ~4.9 acres of land area] 

 
 Determine Minimum and Maximum Build-Out of remaining lots: 

 Assume density between 20-65 units per acre7 
 Preliminary added capacity is between ~310 and ~1,007 units 

 

7 At April 2022 Town Meeting, CPDC is proposing a cap on density in the 40R District at 65 units per acre. 

174



Does the DSGD zoning accommodate 1,990 units?  
No, there is a shortfall between 524 and 1,221 units. A detailed site-specific build-out analysis 
would likely reveal a shortfall somewhere in this range. 

 

(3) Can this shortfall be accommodated in other zoning districts? 
 A-40, Business A, Industrial, and S-15 are all within ½ mile of train station 
 Multi-Family is allowed as-of-right in A-40 and Business A 

 
(4) Calculate minimum multi-family unit capacity in A-40 District (north of downtown) 

 Challenges: lot and dimensional requirements make Multi-Family hard to implement 
 All but 1 lot are undersized 

 Existing Multi-Family Units: 41 
 Assume density between 158 and 209 units per acre 
 Preliminary analysis yields no additional unit capacity 

 
(5) Calculate minimum multi-family unit capacity in Business A District (along south Main Street) 

 Challenges: lot and dimensional requirements make Multi-Family hard to implement 
 All but 4 lots are undersized 

 Existing Multi-Family Units: 45 
 Assume density between 15 and 5810 units per acre 
 Preliminary added capacity between 74 and 286 units 

 
Do Reading’s existing zoning districts accommodate 1,990 units? 
 No, not without zoning amendments. There is a shortfall between 152 and 1,061 units. A detailed 
site-specific analysis would likely reveal a shortfall somewhere in this range. 
 
(6) Explore Possible Zoning Amendments with CPDC 

 Modify dimensional requirements in A-40 and/or Business A. 
 Expand the boundaries of the DSGD 40R Overlay, perhaps extending it over the A-40 

District and Business A District analyzed above. 
 Rezone the Industrial District after the next phase of planning and community 

engagement for the Eastern Gateway. 
 

8 15 units per acre is the minimum gross density allowed under MBTA Communities. 
9 20 units per acre is an existing maximum project density within the A-40 District north of downtown.  
10 58 units per acre is an existing maximum project density within the Business A District along the portion of south Main Street 
within ½ mile of the train station.  

Existing Units: 459 1,990 Minimum Required Unit Capacity
Zoned @ 20 units/acre: 310 -769

Total: 769 1,221 Unit Shortfall

Existing Units: 459 1,990 Minimum Required Unit Capacity
At Zoned Max 65 units/acre: 1,007 -1,466

Total: 1,466 524 Unit Shortfall

175



E. Process & Next Steps 
DHCD will be accepting public comment on the Draft Guidelines until March 31, 2022, and has a goal 
of releasing final Guidelines during summer 2022.  

 Staff will submit feedback on the Guidance to DHCD by March 31st. 
 Staff will continue to collaborate with other planners in the region, to brainstorm ideas for 

compliance, and to work on an Action Plan with CPDC, but will likely not devote too much more time 
to this until DHCD releases their final Guidelines this summer. 

 
In the meantime, there is a process for towns to remain in compliance through 2022 (thereby 
maintaining eligibility for grants), and Reading Planning staff will be taking the following steps: 

• Discussions with CPDC on 2/28/22 and 3/14/22 
• Presentation of Guidelines to Select Board on 3/22/22 
• Submit the MBTA Community Information Form by 5/2/22. 

If the Town does submit an Action Plan for compliance, the schedule will be as follows: 
• Submit the Action Plan by December 31, 2022 at the latest 
• Receive a determination of compliance by March 31, 2023 
• Prepare to take any necessary ZBL Amendments to November 2023 Town Meeting 

176



Downtown 
Smart Growth

District

PROSPECT ST

LOWELL ST

WEST ST

P
LE

A
S
A
N
T 

S
T

S
A
LE

M
S
T

SUMMER AVE

JOHN
CARVER

R
D

HIGH ST

WALKERS BROOK DR

W
O

B
U

R
N

S
T

W
ASH

IN
G
TO

N
ST

P
R

E
S

C
O

T
T
 S

T

E
LL

IS
A

V
E

W
IN

S
L
O

W
 R

D

LINCOLN ST

HARRISON
ST

ARLINGTON ST

M
ID

D
LE

SEX
AVE

LO
C
U
S
T 

S
T

HILLCREST RD

VILLAGE ST

M
A

IN
 S

T

HAVEN
ST

MINOT ST

JOH
N ST

ASH ST

LIN
D

E
N

 S
T

PAR
KVIEW

 R
D

HANCOCK ST

UNIO
N

ST

H
A

R
T
S

H
O

R
N

S
T

HIGHLANDST

E
ATO

N

ST

C
H

A
R

L
E

S
S

T

D
EER

IN
G

 ST

N
E

W
C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

 R
D

M
T V

ERNO
N S

T

P
R
ISCILLA

RD

PRATT ST

O
A
K
 S

T

A
V

O
N

S
T

GREEN ST

DUDLEY S
T

W
E
S

T
O

N
 R

D

CHUTE ST

P
U

R
IT

A
N

R
D

SUNNYSIDE AVE

W
A

R
R

E
N

A
V

E

T
O

W
E
R

 R
D

A
S

H
S

T

A
U
B
U
R
N
 S

T

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

A
V

E

VINE ST

H
A

R
N

D
E

N
S

T

P
IN

E
VA

LE
AVE

M
E

L
B

O
U

R
N

E
A

V
E

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 A
V
E

E

LLIO
TT

S
T

C
A

P
E

C
O

D
A
V
E

FA
IR

V
IE

W
 A

V
E

S
C

O
T
LA

N
D

 R
D

B
A
N
C
R
O

F
T

A
V
E

LONG
FELLO

W
 RD

CHAPIN
AVE

W
ILSO

N ST

H
O

W
A

R
D

S
T

F
R

E
M

O
N

T
S

T

K
IN

G
 S

T

S
C
H
O
O

L
S
T

M
IN

E
R

A
L 

S
T

AZALEA
CIR

HUNT ST

GRAND ST

R
A

C
H

E
L
 R

D B
E
A
R

 H
ILL R

D

G
R

A
N

T
 S

T

W
O

O
D

B
IN

E
S

T

E
LM

 S
T

BERKELEY ST

G
ARDNER RD

W
INTHROP AVE

OSBORNE AVE

SUM
M

ER A
VE

H
A
R
R
IM

A
N
 A

V
E

LEE ST

S
M

IT
H
 A

V
E

B
O

Y
C

E
 S

T

V
IS

T
A
 A

V
E

RIVERSIDE DR

E
C

H
O

 A
V

E

P
A
R

K
 A

V
E

HANSCOM
AVE

S
A
N

B
O

R
N

 S
T

CUMBERLAND RD

BEECH ST

C
R

O
S

S
 S

T

C
E
N

T
E
R

 A
V

E

PERKINS AVE

G
O

ULD S
T

COPELAND AVE

V
A
LE

 R
D

G
LE

N
 R

D

BUCKINGHAMDR

BOLT
ON S

T

K
IN

G
S
TO

N
 S

T

GLENMERE
C

IR

K
N
O

LL
W

O
O

D
R
D

S
H

A
CKFO

RD
RD

H
A

R
V
A

R
D

 S
T

BOND
ST

F
E

D
E
R

A
L 

S
T

T
E

M
P

L
E

 S
T

Ind.

A-40A-40

A-40

A-40

Bus. A

Bus. B

A-40

A-40

S-20

Bus. A

S-15

Legend
Reading MBTA Station Parcel

Reading MBTA Station 0.5 Mile Buffer

Tax Parcel

Railroad

Zoning District
A-40

A-80

Bus. A

Bus. B

Bus. C

S-15

S-20

S-40

Ind.

0.5 Mile Buffer Area = 660.57 Acres

Zoning Total Area 
(acres)

Buffer Area 
(acres)

A 40 30.79 28.00
Bus. A 21.79 19.53

q
0 600 1,200300

Feet

1 inch = 600 feet

177



READING CENTER FOR ACTIVE LIVING COMMITTEE
RECALC

SELECT BOARD UPDATE 
MARCH 22, 2022

178



THE CHARGE OF RECALC IS TO EXPLORE THE 
CURRENT AND FUTURE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY, 
AND INITIATE PLANNING FOR A POTENTIAL NEW 
SENIOR/COMMUNITY CENTER IN TOWN THAT WILL 
FOCUS ON RESIDENTS AGED 60+ AND POSSIBLY 
OTHER MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY

179



• Nov. 2021 - Select Board creates  and 
appoints 7 member Ad-Hoc Committee 

• Dec. 2021 – Committee plans bi-monthly 
meetings including joint meetings with the 
Council on Aging (COA).

• Jan. 2022 – Review of project parameters; 
Committee feedback

• Feb. 2022 – Public Services Department 
hires consultant - UMASS Gerontology 
Institute (2021 Capital Funds) to lead 
community engagement.

• March 2022 – Site Visits planned to area 
centers; joint meeting with COA/UMASS 
Consultant team to review community 
outreach plan

• April 6, 2022 – Two public forums 
planned PSC – 1:00 p.m.; RPL – 6:00 p.m.

RECALC Milestones

180



Why Plan for A Center for Active 
Living (RECAL)?
• Vision – A far reaching vision for the future is needed to 

plan for the needs of the community.

• Needs – What are the needs of the community?

• Pleasant Street Center has outlived its’ useful life  (Needs 
Assessment, Umass Gerontology Institute, 2017)

• Demographic Trends - Growing overall population 
with 27% residents are 60+ years

• Impact on Service Delivery - A dedicated staff having
difficulty meeting the demand of community

• Limited Capacity - Some residents go out town to 
participate in activities at other Centers

181



COMPREHENSIVE  
PROCESS OF:

BENCHMARKING  
PEER 

COMMUNITIES

& 

COMMUNITY INPUT

182



• Prepared extensive survey to 
be used on field visits to 
various Senior and 
Community centers in 
Massachusetts

• Selected visits to over 21 
peer communities in the next 
four weeks

• Data to be collected will 
include facility space 
specifications, 
programs/activities offered, 
and limitations, if any, from 
adequacy of space

Benchmarking

183



HOW DO WE COMPARE? • Communities were chosen
based on following criteria:

• Have recently completed a
similar community process

• Are in the process of doing
so are a mix of Community
Centers and Senior Centers

• Comparable sized 
communities in geographic 
proximity to Reading

184



COMMUNITY INPUT
• Community wide 

outreach via
• Surveys
• Focus Groups
• Public Forums

185



NEXT STEPS
• Collect and analyze community input

Including town-wide community survey.

• Present a Vision.

• Recommend Senior vs. 
Multigenerational Center

• Final recommendations to Select Board

• Town Meeting article funding feasibility 
study (e.g., type of facility, size, potential 
locations, plans, and cost estimates).

The opportunity is here

186



Select Board Open Session 

March 1, 2022, 7:00 PM 

Select Board Meeting Room, Town Hall 

Members Present: Chair Karen Herrick, Vice Chair Anne Landry, Secretary Mark Dockser, Carlo Bacci, 

Chris Haley 

Others Present: Town Manager Fidel Maltez, Recreation Administrator Genevieve Fiorente, Nancy 

Tawadros, Angela Binda, Patrick Silva, Robert Silva, Ed Ross (remote), Rick Houle (remote), Matt 

(remote), Christopher Messing (remote), Mike Sheedy (remote), Alan & Ace Foulds (remote), Jeff Mullen 

(remote), Karen DeAngelis (remote), Kendra Cooper (remote), Jackie McCarthy (remote), Kate DePalma 

(remote), Eileen Litterio (remote), Town Engineer Ryan Percival (remote), Joe DiGiovanni (remote), 

Administrative Specialist Jacquelyn LaVerde (remote), Town Counsel Ivria Fried (remote), Sasha Gill LCCP 

Law (remote), Louise Saunders MIIA (remote) 

Documents used: 

34 Deborah Drive Driveway – SB 

34 Deborah Drive HydroCAD Report 

34 Deborah Drive Plot Plan 

Email from Joseph DiGiovanni: Feedback about 34 Deborah Drive Accessory Apartment 

Water and Sewer Improvements update - SB 2-22-2022 

Copy of 20220131 FY23 Capital Plan 

Copy of SB priorities survey -updated 

21-1223 Rare Hospitality International Letter to local boards 

2022-01-24 Longhorn Steakhouse Change of Officer – Redacted 

Portable Lights at Coolidge 

emails of support 

2022 TM Annual Warrant DRAFT-6 

2018-10-30 Select Board Minutes 

2022-02-01 Select Board Minutes DRAFT - Simple- ajl & kh & md & if 

2022-02-15 SB Minutes DRAFT - Simple- ajl MD KH edits 

 

This meeting was held in-person and remotely via Zoom. 

SB Liaison & Town Manager Reports: 

Mark Dockser stated that ReCalc meets every two weeks and is making progress.  They would like to 

come to the Select Board on March 22nd to present where they are in the process. 

Chris Haley shared highlights from the School Committee meeting: the mask mandate was rescinded, 

though it is still recommended that unvaccinated children wear them; a GoFundMe page was setup to 

187



help bring the Vietnam Vet Memorial to the High School; and sixth grade students from Coolidge 

presented their illustrative map. 

Anne Landry stated that the new Director of Equity and Social Justice has been hired and it would be 

nice to invite her to introduce herself at the next meeting. 

Karen Herrick noted that the School Committee approval was not necessary for the Community Garden.  

RMLD will be holding public hearings on the stretch code for the public to provide feedback. 

Town Manager Fidel Maltez thanked former Town Manager Bob LeLacheur for welcoming him and 

completing a balanced budget for FY23.  The Town Moderator confirmed that Town Meeting will be in-

person at the Performing Arts Center at the High School.  The FY23 budget has been completed and 

submitted to the Finance Committee. 

Karen Herrick announced that Mr. Maltez will be attending a meet and greet at the Burbank YMCA on 

March 16th from 8:00 am to 11:00 am. 

 

Public Comment: 

There was no comment from the public. 

 

Consent Agenda: 

Vote to dissolve the Ad Hoc Town Manager Screening Committee 

Anne Landry stated that the Board is in good position to dissolve the ad hoc Town Manager Screening 

Committee.  New Town Manager Fidel Maltez is now fully on board. 

Approve Deborah Drive Driveway Request 

Town Engineer Ryan Percival presented the proposed plan to add a secondary driveway to serve as ADA 

access to an addition on the left-hand side of the existing house being built for aging parents.  The Select 

Board policy requires 125 feet between driveways.  However, this request was only 43 feet and was 

therefore denied by Engineering on January 11th.  The applicant requested that the request be brought 

before the Select Board for a waiver.  Engineering and Conservation had concerns about drainage, which 

were addressed by the addition of drip trenches and a rain garden to capture the entirety of the 

driveway, which meets the capacity of a 100-year storm.  The matter was brought before the Parking 

Traffic Transportation Task Force (PTTTF) and there was no reason for concern that a second driveway 

would affect safety or traffic. 

Applicant Patrick Silva of 34 Deborah Drive was present and explained that the project was already 

approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals with the condition that the Conservation Commission and 

Select Board approved.  Conservation approved with the condition that the Select Board approved.  The 

188



accessory apartment is for Mr. Silva’s parents, and his mother needs wheelchair access.  He stated that 

though he did not want to add a second driveway, they designed the smallest one they could. 

Vote to extend sunset date for Parking Advisory & Recommendations Committee (PARC) to April 30, 

2022 

Chris Haley explained that the PARC is reaching the end of its work.  There are only two meetings left 

and the only topic they are still working on is the two-hour scenario.  He stated that he does not 

anticipate needing more time beyond April 30th. 

Mark Dockser moved to accept the consent agenda as proposed.  The motion was seconded by Karen 

Herrick and approved 5-0 by unanimous vote. 

 

Water Sewer Capital Projects Overview: 

Town Engineer Ryan Percival presented status and cost updates on approved water and sewer projects 

including: Sturges Pump Station, downtown water and sewer improvements, Gazebo Circle 

improvements, Auburn Street water tank, and Emerson Street and Walkers Brook Drive water main 

replacements.  All projects total almost $19 million.  There may be potential for MassWorks grants 

where economic development is involved.  All of these projects are eligible for ARPA.  Other possible 

ways to offset costs include chapter 90 program and the small bridge program.  Following discussion, 

Mr. Percival also noted that there are supply chain delays that may affect project costs in the future. 

 

Approve Longhorn Change of Officer: 

Elizabeth Pisano of Upton, Connell, and Devlin was present on behalf of Longhorn and explained that 

the application was just for an officer change.  There will be no operational changes to the restaurant.  

Mr. Dockser emphasized that it is important to make sure there are no violations and commended the 

restaurant for having no violations in Reading. 

Mark Dockser moved to approve the change of officer request for Long Horn Steakhouse.  The motion 

was seconded by Chris Haley and approved 5-0 by unanimous vote. 

 

Discuss/Approve Temporary Lights at Coolidge: 

Recreation Administrator Jenna Fiorente reviewed the plan to place four portable lights at the Coolidge 

Middle School soccer field from April 15th to June 15th for practices while Turf 1 at the High School is 

offline for replacement.  The total cost is a little over $5,000, which will be shared by the Recreation 

Division, Soccer, and Lacrosse. 

189



Mark Dockser moved to approve the placement of temporary lights at Coolidge.  The motion was 

seconded by Carlo Bacci and approved 5-0 by unanimous vote. 

 

Vote to Close Warrant for Annual Town Meeting: 

The Board reviewed the Annual Town Meeting warrant.  Mr. Maltez noted there were no changes to the 

19 articles presented at the last meeting.  Ms. Fried noted that after the draft warrant was circulated, 

formatting was adjusted, and typos corrected, but no change was made to any content. 

Mark Dockser moved to close the Annual Town Meeting warrant consisting of 19 Articles to take place 

on April 25, 2022, as amended.  The motion was seconded by Chris Haley and approved 5-0 by 

unanimous vote. 

 

Discuss Town Charter Section 5.1: Town Manager termination pay: 

Karen Herrick reviewed the matter, which was brought to the Board’s attention by the Town 

Accountant.  Town Counsel had given her opinion on the Town Charter language allowing termination 

pay, which was put in while the first Town Manager was in place.  Board members discussed their 

opinions on the matter. 

Anne Landry proposed to provide one month salary and reasoned that Peter Hechenbleikner was Town 

Manager for almost 30 years and received three months of termination pay.  Mr. LeLacheur was Town 

Manager for 9 years, or about one-third the time.  With the recent budget, some requests of 

Department Heads and residents were left out to fund other priorities, which is another reason to only 

offer one month.  Also, Mr. LeLacheur provided six months’ notice, and she would like to incentivize that 

kind of advanced notice for future Town Managers. 

Carlo Bacci echoed Ms. Landry’s sentiments, but advocated for a minimum of three months, as Mr. 

LeLacheur was a leader in this Town and went above and beyond anyone else, and it sends a message to 

future Town Managers. 

Karen Herrick stated that the Charter is too vaguely worded and noted that Mr. LeLacheur has not 

requested compensation under this clause. 

Mark Dockser noted that the Town is not a private company, rather a Town Government talking about 

taxpayer money.  If the provision was in the contract, it would be clear, but it is not.  It is a provision in 

the Charter only used once.  He stated that he felt it is not appropriate for the Board to make a 

termination payment. 

Anne Landry moved to offer one month salary, subject to the availability of funds and approval of 

Town Meeting.  The motion was seconded by Chris Haley.  Following discussion, the motion was 

190



approved 4-1 with Carlo Bacci, Chris Haley, Mark Dockser, and Anne Landry in favor, and Karen 

Herrick opposed. 

 

Discuss Future Agendas: 

Mr. Maltez noted that land use and Symonds Way update, an update on Town website, and an 

introduction of the new Director of Equity and Social Justice were added to the next agenda. 

Karen Herrick added a hearing to remove a Trails Committee member who has not been attending 

meetings and has not responded to efforts made to contact her. 

Mark Dockser requested a discussion on categories for ARPA. 

Anne Landry suggested a discussion on which earmarks to request through the state budget, and a 

discussion on the process for volunteer boards and committees to request funds from the Select Board 

reserve account. 

 

Approve Meeting Minutes: February 1, 2022, February 15, 2022: 

Mark Dockser moved to approve the meeting minutes of February 1, 2022, and February 15, 2022, as 

amended.  The motion was seconded by Anne Landry.  Chris Haley stated that he disagreed with 

changing the minutes from what was accurately said at the time.  Ms. Landry noted that she agreed with 

Town Counsel’s input that is reflective of accuracy as well as what is in the Charter.  The motion was 

approved 5-0 by unanimous vote. 

 

Executive Session: Purpose 3: Discuss litigation strategy with respect to Toussaint v. Reading: 

At 9:25 pm, Mark Dockser moved that the Board go into Executive Session, including staff members 

Fidel Maltez and Jackie LaVerde, Town Counsel Ivria Fried, Special Counsel Alexandra Gill, and MIIA 

representative Louise Saunders, under Purpose 3, to discuss litigation strategy with respect to 

Toussaint v. Reading, and further the Chair declares that an open meeting could have a detrimental 

effect on the litigation position of the body; and that the Board will NOT reconvene in open session.  

The motion was seconded by Karen Herrick and approved 5-0 by unanimous roll call vote. 

191


	3 Copy of PARC_FinalProposals_3-15-22.pdf
	Copy of PARC_2HourProposals_3-15-22
	Copy of PARC_LotProposals_3-15-22
	Copy of PARC_RegulationProposals_3-15-22
	Copy of PARC_ResidentOnlyProposals_3-15-22
	Copy of PARC-EmployeeProposals_3-15-22




